
M:\City Council Meetings\2024 Council Staff Reports\11.18.2024 City Council Meetings\Regular Meeting\11.18.2024 REGULAR 
AGENDA.doc 

    Regular City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Monday, Nov. 18, 2024 
    City Council Chambers 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. City of Farmington Minutes 
 B. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
 C. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report  

D. Accept the resignation of Ann Echols from the Emergency Preparedness 
Committee, and Colleen Coogan from the Commission on Children, Youth 
and Service 

E. Consideration of a resolution authorizing Electronic Transactions and  
Amended ACH (Electronic Transactions) Policy 2024 

F. Farmington Quarterly Investment Report 
G. Court Quarterly Financial Reports 
H. Farmington Quarterly Financial Report 
I. Appoint Kevin Russom to the Historical Commission 
J. Proclamation: November 13, 2024 World Kindness Day 
 

   
5. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
      
6. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Genisys Credit Union/Main Street Oakland County small business grants:  
SKEP Space   
Lone Light Spirits 

B. Farmington Masonic Lodge Architectural Assessment and Preservation 
Master Plan – produced by Main Street Oakland County for Downtown 
Farmington  

C. Public Hearing Program Year 2025 Community Development Block Grant 
Application 

  
7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration to Approve a Resolution to Adopt Program Year 2025 
Community Development Block Grant Application  

B. Adopt resolution approving 2025 City Council Meeting Dates  
C.  Consideration to adopt Budget Amendment #5, amending Fiscal Year 

2024-25 Budget 
D. 2024 Sidewalk Program 



M:\City Council Meetings\2024 Council Staff Reports\11.18.2024 City Council Meetings\Regular Meeting\11.18.2024 REGULAR 
AGENDA.doc 

E.  DPW Concrete Replacement 
F.  RCOC Maintenance Annual Agreement 
G. Warner Home Grant Improvements 
  

8.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City will follow its normal procedures for accommodation of persons with disabilities. Those individuals needing 
accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 474-5500, ext. 2218 at least 
two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 



    City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., Monday, October 21, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 
                                       

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on October 21, 2024, at 23600 
Liberty Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 
267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:02 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
City Attorney, Tom Schultz 
Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman 
DTE Representatives  
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the agenda as presented.   

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 No members of the public spoke.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 2 

 
 
 
4. DTE ENERGY UPDATE  
 
  DTE presented an update to Council on the status of the four-point plan for transforming 

the electric distribution grid, with specific plans underway for Farmington. The plan details 
include the following points:  

 
• Accelerating transition to a smart grid. This should fully automate the system 

in 5 years. Remote monitoring and control will be widely deployed, enabling 
DTE system operations center to isolate damage and remotely restore 
customers. 36% of Farmington circuits are projected to be automated by the 
end of 2025. 

• Upgrade existing infrastructure. This includes maintenance to a 10-year pole 
cycle and a 5-year pole top cycle. Points include, harden system and replace 
at-risk infrastructure to reduce outages and increase storm resiliency; 82% of 
Farmington is on the 10-year pole maintenance cycle; 9% of Farmington is on 
the 5-year pole top cycle; aspire to achieve this cycle by 2030.  

• Rebuild the Grid. Accelerate conversion of 4.8kV circuits. Convert 4.8kV 
system to higher grid voltage. Farmington has 11 circuits total. 7 circuits are 
already 13.2 kV that will be converted over the next 10-15 years; Eliminate 
loading constraints on the 13.2 kV; rebuild 40 kV sub-transmission system.  

  
Other areas of concern were discussed along with potential projects. The Mayor asked 
that DTE keep Farmington in mind for the future projects of improvements.  

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

None  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 No members of the public spoke.  
 
7. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

No members of the Council spoke.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 3 

 
 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Schneemann, Councilmember   

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk   
 
 



    City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Monday, October 21, 2024 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
                          

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on October 21, 2024, at 23600 Liberty 
Street, Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-
1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

City Administration Present 
City Manager, David Murphy 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman 
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
DPW Superintendent Chuck Eudy 
City Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman 
City Attorney, Tom Schultz   

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
John Schertel of the Emergency Preparedness Commission talked about the tip of the 
month – fire safety.  
 
Carol Boyd of 35452 Heritage Lane, spoke of concerns regarding a high-water bill at the 
Village Condos.  
 
Jennifer Kaminski of 33000 Freedom Road, spoke of the Farmington Schools Millage 
Proposal that is on the November ballot.  
 
Nancy Dillon of 33618 Alta Loma Drive, spoke of dead tree concerns.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 2 

 
 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Move to approve the consent agenda as presented with the addition of the 
proclamation.  
 
 A. City of Farmington Minutes 

B. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
C. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report 
D. Farmington DPW Quarterly Report 
E. Planning and Building Quarterly Report 
F. Proclamation for Family Court Awareness Month  
 

RESULT: APPROVED UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  

 
 
5.  APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR AGENDA  
 
Move to approve the regular agenda as presented. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember  

 
 
6.  PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Holly Days Update – Annette Compo.  
 
 Holly Days 2024 will be held on Saturday, December 7th in Downtown Farmington. Many 
events will take place throughout the day, including the Light up the Grand Parade at 5:30 p.m. 
and the Tree Lighting at Warner Mansion will follow the parade.  
 
7A. National First Responders Day Proclamation 
 

Move to adopt a proclamation naming October 28, 2024, National First 
Responders Day in the City of Farmington. 

 

RESULT:  APPROVED UNANIMOUS  
MOVER: Schneemann, Mayor Pro-Tem 
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember  

 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 3 

 
 
7B. Amend Social District hours for Hollywood Haunt Pub Crawl 2024 Event 
 
Move to approve a resolution amending the social district common area management and 
maintenance plan for a temporary change in the hours of operation for October 26, 2024, 
to allow the Commons Area to be open until 11:59 PM on that single date and approve the 
Hollywood Haunt Pub Crawl 2024 event that is proposed to take place in the 
Syndicate area and in participating businesses. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember 

 
7C. Change Order No. 6 and Payment Application No. 9 (Final) for the 2022 Road 

Rehabilitation Project. 
 
Move To Approve payment to Best Asphalt Incorporated Change Order No. 6 and Payment 
Application No. 9 in the amount of $500 for the. 2022 Road Rehabilitation Project. 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember  
AYES: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 

 
 
7D. Consideration to Schedule Program Year 2025 Community Development Block 

Grant Application Public Hearing 
 
Move to schedule a public hearing on November 18, 2024 for public comment on the 
proposed Program Year 2025 Community Development Block Grant application. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember  
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 4 

 
7E. 2024 Sidewalk Program  
 
Move to approve Change Order No. 9 for the 2020 Sidewalk Replacement Contract to Luigi 
Ferdinandi & Sons during the 2024/25 Fiscal Year not to exceed $394,600. 
 
Change Order No. 9 includes: 
Revised unit cost for concrete replacement at Women’s Park 
Revised quantities in Bel-Aire sub 
Revised scope of work behind the Grand River businesses adjacent to the north lot. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Taylor, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem  
AYES: LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk  

 
 
7F. Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining 
 
Move to approve Emergency Sanitary Sewer Lining Payment No. 2 in the amount of 
$50,130.55 and Change Order No.1 in the amount of $87,563 to Pipeline Management for 
work completed during the month of September 2024. 
 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem   
SECONDER: Parkins, Councilmember   
AYES: Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa 

 
 
7G.  Second reading of Proposed Amendment to the City of Farmington Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 34, “Water & Sewers”, Article III, “Sewage Disposal,” Section 
34-117, Building Sewer and Connections, Construction, Usage and Maintenance,” 
To add subsection (C)(14), Regulating Building Sewer Lining. 

 
Move to approve Adoption of Ordinance No. C-811-2024, Amending the City of 
Farmington Code Ordinances, Chapter 34, Water & Sewers, to add new sub-section, 
Regulating Building Sewer Lining 

RESULT:  APPROVED – UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Schneemann, Councilmember   
SECONDER: Taylor, Councilmember   
AYES: Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, LaRussa, Parkins 

 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council October 21, 2024 

 

 
 5 

 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 Thomas Hull of Farmington Hills spoke of free tutoring opportunities.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn the meeting. 

RESULT: APPROVED - UNANIMOUS 
MOVER: Balk, Mayor Pro-Tem    
SECONDER: Schneemann, Councilmember  

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
 
 
 ___ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk  
   
 
 
Approval Date:  







Farmington Public Safety Department 
Public Safety Director Bob Houhanisin 

 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

 

 

October 2024 Public Safety Incidents 
 
Assault with intent to do great bodily harm.  
On 10/04/2024 at approximately 05:15 PM officers were dispatched to 23600 Liberty St., the police 
department for the report of a child custody exchange standby. While enroute officers were alerted that 
the two parties, a 33-year-old suspect and a 44-year-old victim were involved in an active altercation 
involving an assault with a baseball bat. Officers arrived and secured the suspect, along with the 
weapon. The suspect was arrested, and the case forwarded to the Oakland County Prosecutors office for 
warrant consideration.   
 
Larceny  
On 10/01/2024 at approximately 5:00 PM officers were dispatched to the 24000 block of Orchard Lake 
Rd. for a reported larceny. Officers met with the victim, an 88-year-old female who states she was 
shopping, set down her purse outside of the business and forgot to pick it back up. Review of the 
surveillance video shows an unknown age male exiting a black Cadillac SUV, walk up to the purse, take it 
and get back into the vehicle and drive away with it. The victim was advised to cancel her credit cards. 
The case has been forwarded to the detective bureau for investigation.   
 
Felony warrant O/PD: 
On 10/09/2024 an officer conducting a plaza check at Farmington Plaza observed a 38-year-old female 
sleeping on a bench outside a closed business at 1900 hours. The female was identified, and the officer 
discovered an outstanding felony warrant out of Farmington Hills PD for drugs. The warrant was 
confirmed, and the female was arrested and transported to Farmington Hills PD.   
 
Attempt Larceny from Auto: 
On 10/09/2024 at approximately 0100 hours, an officer observed a subject opening a vehicle car door in 
the parking lot of a closed motor vehicle repair shop around Nine Mile and Farmington Road. The 
homeless 42-year-old suspect claimed to be looking for a lighter to light his cigarette. The subject was 
arrested for attempt LFA. The report will be submitted to the Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office for 
warrant review.  
 
 
Accidental discharge of a firearm  
On 10/18/2024 at approximately 05:00 PM officers were dispatched to Corewell Health for a reported 
gunshot wound victim (42 years of age) that occurred within Farmington City. Officers contacted the 
injured party to find out that he was working on a piece of equipment in the 32000 block of Grand River 
when he placed a tool into the same pocket where he was legally carrying a firearm. The firearm 
discharged and the subject suffered an injury. The case has been forwarded to the detective bureau for 
warrant consideration.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

Flee and Elude 
On 10/16/2024 at approximately 2:00 AM officers were alerted to a vehicle believed to be involved in 
larceny from autos taking place in Farmington Hills. An officer located the suspect vehicle and 
attempted to initiate a traffic stop in the area of Drake and Grand River. The vehicle fled from officers 
and a brief pursuit took place. Officers decided to terminate the pursuit. The case has been forwarded 
to the detective bureau for investigation.    
 
 
Smoke Investigation  
On 10/27/2024 at approximately 0130 hours, officers were dispatched to Chatham Hills Apartments 
located at 36601 Grand River on a report of flames coming out of an apartment vent. Upon arrival, 
officers detected light smoke but no active fire in the unit. The tenant reported she turned on her 
furnace for the first time and observed flames coming out of her living room vent. A Thermal imaging 
camera was utilized to check for hot spots with negative results. Maintenance was contacted to check 
the furnace. The smoke was ventilated from the unit and the furnace deactivated.  
 
 
Vehicle Theft UDAA 
On 10/22/2024 a tenant from the Drakeshire Apartments reported to our front desk that her vehicle, a 
2005 Mercury Sable, was stolen from her parking lot between Sunday, October 20th at 2100 hours and 
Monday, October 21st at approximately 1600 hours.  The vehicle was entered into LEIN as stolen.  
 
 
Retail Fraud Refund/Exchange 2nd Degree: 
On 11/01/2024 at approximately 2030 hours officers were dispatched to TJ Maxx located at 33025 
Grand River Ave on two female suspects approximately 30 years of age attempting to return stolen 
items for a refund. Loss Prevention advised the items, kitchen supplies, were stolen from other TJ Maxx 
locations. The value refunded was approximately $760. The suspects obtained the refund and left prior 
to officers’ arrival. The case has been forwarded to DB. 
 
 
 

 

CALL TYPE & QUANTITY 

TOTAL CALLS TRAFFIC STOPS MEDICALS FIRE CALLS CRASHES      
647 236 53 7 20 

 
OWI OUID DWLS WARRANT FELONY 

5 0 8 14 2 
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: Nov. 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

4D 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Board and Commission Resignations: Ann Echols from the Emergency 
Preparedness Committee and Colleen Coogan from the Commission on Children Youth and 
Families 
Proposed Motion:   
Consent agenda 

Background:   
 
Ann Echols submitted her resignation from the Emergency Preparedness Committee. This term 
expires Feb. 1, 2026. 
 
Colleen Coogan submitted her resignation from the Commission on Children, Youth and 
Families, she was Farmington’s alternate. This term is up Dec. 31, 2024.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials: Resignation letters from both.  
 



An email from Ann Echols sent Saturday, Nov. 2, 2024:  

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

 

Good Afternoon Melissa,  

I wanted to let you know that I am resigning the Farmington Emergency Preparedness Commission 
effective November 11, 2024.  I was promoted to Assistant Chief at work and need to refocus my 
time.  Do you need a formal letter or does this email work for notification?  

 

Thank you,  

Ann 

 



From: Colleen Coogan <colleen.coogan@woodhillgrp.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 9, 2024 5:42 AM 
To: Melissa Andrade <mandrade@farmgov.com> 
Subject: Re: Children Youth and Family Board 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hi Melissa,  

My apologies as I thought I worked this through with someone else.  I would love to continue serving 
but I am out of town on Thursdays at a clients and cannot make these times.  Please remove me 
from the board and I will reapply when my schedule permits 

 

From: Melissa Andrade <mandrade@farmgov.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 6, 2024 8:36 AM 
To: Colleen Coogan <colleen.coogan@woodhillgrp.com> 
Subject: Children Youth and Family Board  

  

Hi Colleen, 

The CYF Board let me know that you’ve been unable to attend the meetings. Did you want to remain 
on the board? If so, will you be able to attend in the future. While you’re an alternate, you are 
needed at the meetings. Let me know. 

Melissa Andrade, 

Assistant to the City Manager &  

Communications 

248-699-5121 

  

 

mailto:colleen.coogan@woodhillgrp.com
mailto:mandrade@farmgov.com
mailto:mandrade@farmgov.com
mailto:colleen.coogan@woodhillgrp.com


 

 

Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

Council Meeting  
Date:  November 18, 2024 

Reference 
Number 

4E 

Submitted by: City Treasurer 
 
Description   Consideration of a  Resolution Authorizing Electronic Transactions and  
Amended ACH (Electronic Transactions) Policy 2024. 
 
Requested Action   1. Motion to approve Resolution Authorizing Electronic Transactions. 
 
2. Motion to Approve an Amended ACH (Electronic Transactions) Policy 2024.  
 
Background    
 
Public Act 738 of 2002, as set forth in  MCL 124.301 et seq. provides authority for local 
units of government to enter into electronic (automated clearing house “ACH”) transactions, 
to authorize the City Treasurer (its designated Electronic Transactions Officer “EOT”) to 
enter into ACH transactions in making or receiving payments on behalf of the City. 
 
The Act authorizes the City Treasurer to delegate authority to an officer or employee of the 
City to oversee administration of the policy: 
 
The ACH policy shall include all of the following: 
 
(a) That an officer or employee designated by the treasurer or ETO is responsible for the 
local unit's ACH agreements, including payment approval, accounting, reporting, and 
generally for overseeing compliance with the ACH policy. Mich. Comp. Laws Ann. § 
124.303 (West) 
 
 
The Policy previously designated the Controller, the Assistant Controller, or the Deputy 
Clerk.  The designees have been updated to reflect current City employee and officer 
positions, including the  Controller, Deputy Treasurer, or the Administrative Specialist. 
 

Agenda Review 
Department Head 

 
 

Finance/Treasurer City Attorney City Manager 



1 
 

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
AMENDED ACH (ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS) POLICY 2024 

 
Purpose: 
 
In accordance with Public Act 738 of 2002, MCL 124.301 et seq., allowing local units of 
government to enter into electronic transactions, the City of Farmington establishes this policy as 
the framework governing ACH arrangements and transactions entered into on behalf of the City 
of Farmington. 
 
Definitions: 
 
 “Automated clearing house” or “ACH” means a national governmental organization that 
has authority to process electronic payments, including, but not limited to, the national automated 
clearing house association and the federal reserve system. 
 
 An “ACH arrangement” means the agreement between the originator of the ACH 
transaction and the receiver of an ACH transaction. 
 
 An “ACH transaction” means an electronic payment, debit, or credit transfer processed 
through an automated clearinghouse. 
 
 An “ACH policy” means the procedures and internal controls as determined under this 
written policy developed and adopted by the City Council. 
 
Policy: 
 

A. By resolution of Council, the Treasurer has been designated as the electronic 
transactions officer (ETO) responsible for all ACH arrangements and transactions 
and is authorized to enter into such arrangements and transactions on behalf of the 
City. 

 
B. The Treasurer may designate the Controller, Deputy Treasurer, or Administrative 

Specialist to be responsible for the City’s ACH arrangements, including approval 
for transactions, accounting, reporting or generally ensuring compliance with this 
Policy or other ACH policies, procedures or instructions as established by the 
Treasurer. 

 
C. The Treasurer or the Treasurer’s designee shall maintain records of all ACH 

arrangements and transactions, which records shall document the goods or services 
purchased, the cost of the goods or services, the date of payment and the City 
department, activity, program or agency that received the goods or services and 
approved payment.  Other electronic transactions such as fund to fund transfers, 
funds transferred for investment purposes, transfers of taxes withheld from payroll 
and the like shall be documented as to purpose, amount, date of transaction, 
approvals and other pertinent information. 



2 
 

 
D. Any disbursement of City monies in payment for goods or services received by the 

City shall have the prior approval of the City Officer authorized to approve the 
payment. 

 
E. All electronic transactions shall be verified by the Treasurer or the Treasurer’s 

designee. 
 
F. ACH transactions involving disbursements shall be included on the Monthly 

Payments Report presented to the Council. 
 
G. No monies shall be automatically withdrawn from City accounts, as all withdrawals 

require the explicit approval of the City Treasurer or the Treasurer’s designee. 
 
H. Internal accounting controls established by the Treasurer for other types of receipts 

and disbursements shall also apply to ACH transactions. 
 
I. The Treasurer may enter into ACH arrangements to withdraw funds from 

residents/customers accounts to make payment on amounts owed the City.  Prior to 
initiating such transactions, the Treasurer will have signed authorization from the 
resident/customer giving the City authorization for the transactions. 

 
Amendment of Policy: 
 
This policy may be amended from time to time by submitting the revised policy to City Council. 
 
 



1 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF FARMINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS 

 
 
 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Farmington, County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, held on the __th day of November, 2024, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. 
 
 The following resolution was offered by Council Member ___________ and supported by 
Council Member _________. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Farmington has determined that it is in the best 
interest of the City, pursuant to the authority granted under Public Act 738 of 2002, MCL 124.301 
et seq., for local units of government to enter into electronic (automated clearing house “ACH”) 
transactions, to authorize the City Treasurer (its designated Electronic Transactions Officer 
“EOT”) to enter into ACH transactions in making or receiving payments on behalf of the City. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

1. The City Treasurer of the City of Farmington is designated as the City’s Electronic 
Transactions Officer (ETO) and authorized to enter into automated clearing house 
(ACH) transactions on behalf of the City. 

 
2. The City Treasurer is authorized to delegate authority to the Controller, Deputy 

Treasurer, or the Administrative Specialist to initiate and/or approve ACH 
transactions, but only within the written ACH Policy as presented to the Council 
and according to written procedures and ACH arrangements established by the 
Treasurer. 

 
3. ACH transactions shall be approved by the City Officer who would otherwise be 

responsible for approving such transfers or payments. 
 
4. The Treasurer shall provide for appropriate documentation, accounting, and 

reporting for all ACH transactions as for any other receipts or disbursements 
received or made on behalf of the City. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 
 
 A written ACH Policy has been submitted to Council as required by Public Act 738 of 
2002.  
      



2 
 

 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTENTIONS: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED __________________, 2024. 
 

_______________________________ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Farmington at a regular meeting held this ______ day of 
_________________, 2024. 

_______________________________ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 
City of Farmington 

 



INVESTMENT REPORT

CITY OF FARMINGTON

QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER, 2024

Submitted by:
Jaime Pohlman, Director of Finance and Administration



CITY OF FARMINGTON
QUARTER ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 2024

  
BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE RATING 

7/31/24 8/31/24 9/30/24 7/31/24 8/31/24 9/30/24 MATURITY RATING AGENCY
Pooled Mutual Funds:
Comerica 4,889,083$    4,910,280$        4,930,307$      5.11% 5.11% 4.79% Daily Not rated N/A
Oakland County Investment Pool 982,409$        984,999$           987,959$         2.72% 3.10% 3.64% Daily Not rated N/A
Michigan Class 6,432,015       6,461,333          6,489,113        5.38% 5.36% 4.98% Daily AAAm S&P
Total Pooled Funds: 12,303,508    12,356,611        12,407,379      

Certificates of Deposit: -                      -                         -                       
Total Certificates of Deposit: -                      -                         -                       

JPMorgan Chase  
100% US Treasury Funds 4,048,757$    6,522,442$        8,655,118$      4.77% 4.75% 4.62%
Uninvested 531,330$        7,404,036$        424,624$         2.15% 2.15% 2.15%

4,580,087$    13,926,478$      9,079,742$      

Less: Authorities/Entities** (3,306,205)     (11,555,277)       (2,943,657)       

 TOTAL: 13,577,390$  14,727,812$      18,543,464$    

RATE OF RETURN

** Investment Balances do not include the investments of the 47th District Court,  the Farmington Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the 
Corridor Improvement Authority, the Farmington Downtown Development Authority, the Friends of the Governor Warner Mansion, the Self 
Insurance Funds on deposit with MMRMA, or the Public Employee Health Care Funds invested with Morgan Stanley Smith Barney.

Page 1

























 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: Nov. 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

4I 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Historical Commission Appointment 
Proposed Motion:  Move to appoint Kevin Russom to the Farmington Historical Commission for 
a term ending March 31, 2025 

Background:  Kevin Russom was interviewed by City Council for the Parking Advisory 
Committee at the September 3 Special City Council Meeting. He was later appointed to the 
Bicentennial Committee, the is coming to an end, so would like to be appointed to the vacancy 
on the Historical Commission.  
 
The Historical Commission vacancy has been posted for more than a month.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: Nov. 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

4J 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Proclamation naming November 13 World Kindness Day 
Proposed Motion:   
None 

Background:   
The Farmington/Farmington Hills Commission on Children, Youth and Families requested that 
the Cities of Farmington and Farmington Hills proclaim Nov. 13, World Kindness Day. While the 
date is past (due to council meeting timing), the City of Farmington would still like to recognize 
the date. 
 
World Kindness Day is celebrated on November 13th each year, and it's a day to recognize the 
importance of kindness, empathy, and positivity. The day was established in 1998 by the World 
Kindness Movement, a global coalition of kindness organizations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials: Proclamation 
 



 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
World Kindness Day 

Nov. 13, 2024 
 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Farmington recognizes the value of acts of kindness that are 

performed without prompting or reason and how these acts can 
positively impact the person giving kindness, the person receiving 
kindness, and those witnessing; and, 

 
WHEREAS, acts of kindness can be performed by any person regardless of age, 

background, education, gender, religion, or abilities for the unselfish 
purpose of spreading goodwill; and, 

 
WHEREAS, kind individuals create a more caring community and help to perpetuate 

genuine acts of kindness; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Farmington/Farmington Hills Commission on Children, Youth and 

Families seeks to encourage a kind and supportive environment where 
children, youth, and families are happy, healthy, educated, safe, and have 
the opportunity to reach their full potential; and, 

 
WHEREAS, members of the Commission on Children, Youth and Families inspire 

kindness and mental health awareness through their Kindness Rock 
Garden in Heritage Park, an interactive community art installation of 
rocks painted with uplifting messages for anyone to take when they need 
encouragement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Joe LaRussa, Mayor of the City of Farmington, on behalf of the City 
Council, do hereby proclaim Nov. 13, 2024, to be “World Kindness Day” and urge all 
members of the community to share acts of kindness, caring and compassion in the community, 
not just on Nov. 13, but every day of the year. 
 
 
 

 
  

            Joe LaRussa, Mayor 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

6A 

Submitted by: DDA Director 

Agenda Topic: Presentation of Main Street Oakland County/ Genisys Credit Union Micro 
Business Startup Grants by Erick Phillips, MSOC and Theresa Doan, Genysis Credit Union, to 
Lone Light Spirits and SKEP Space 

Proposed Motion:   None 

 

Background:   
 
The Spirit of Main Street Micro Business Startup Grant Program is designed to complement 
MSOC economic vitality efforts and support entrepreneurship at the local community level.  
Downtown Farmington has a strong record of success in winning this grant with multiple 
downtown businesses since the program’s inception.  DDA staff works closely with Theresa 
Doan and the team at MSOC to identify needs for small business and support with tactical 
funding.   
 
We are proud to host grant presentations for Lone Light Spirits ($2,500) and SKEP Space 
($1,000), with Erick Phillips, MSOC and Theresa Doan, Genysis Credit Union. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

6B 

Submitted by: DDA Director 

Agenda Topic: Presentation of Main Street Oakland County Revitalization Master Plan for 
Masonic Lodge by Ron Campbell, MSOC and John Lecznar, Farmington Masonic Lodge 151 

Proposed Motion:   None 

 

Background:  In early 2022, the Farmington DDA/Main Street contacted Main Street Oakland 
County (MSOC) asking for design/ technical assistance for the historic Farmington Masonic 
Lodge within the Downtown Historic District. 

The task was to research, document and evaluate the physical conditions of the historic 
Masonic Lodge and offer recommendations for the proper maintenance measures to preserve, 
restore and physical improvements of this contributing structure. 

Presentation is a brief overview of this comprehensive plan.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:  
November 18, 2024 

Reference 
Number 

6C 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
 
Description   Public Hearing Program Year 2025 Community Development Block Grant 
Application 
 
Requested Action    
City Council Opens Public Hearing and accepts comments 
City Council Closes Public Hearing 
 
Background    
 
The City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for 2025 is projected by 
Oakland County to be $26,502. As part of the application process, the city must hold a public 
hearing.  
 
Our completed application, accompanied by a resolution of Council approval, must be 
submitted to Oakland County by December 6, 2024. 
 
 

Agenda Review 
Department Head 
 
 

Finance/Treasurer City Attorney City Manager 

 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting 
Date: November 18, 2024

Reference 
Number 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 

Description   Consideration to Approve 2025 Program Year Community 
Development Block Grant Application 

Requested Action   Move to approve resolution adopting 2025 Program 
Year Community Development Block Grant Application 

Background   

Earlier in the meeting, the City Council will have held a public hearing on the 
proposed 2025 Program Year Community Development Block Grant application. City 
Administration is recommending adoption of the attached resolution which will be 
forwarded to Oakland County Neighborhood and Housing Development. 

The City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for 2025 is projected 
by Oakland County to be $26,502. Our completed application, accompanied by 
a resolution of Council approval, must be submitted to Oakland County by December 6, 2024.   

As Council knows, CDBG funding eligibility is restricted to projects or programs that 
meet specific objectives determined by the federal Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). Of these objectives, Farmington is limited to CDBG funding for 
projects where "the primary beneficiaries are low or moderate income people."   

Council may recall from previous years' CDBG applications that senior programs/
projects receive special eligibility consideration. The administration’s preliminary 
recommendation, outlined below, proposes a CDBG program that is not administratively 
burdensome, and continues current city funding level for the senior center and senior services.   

CDBG funds are federal funds administered by the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development.    

The administration's preliminary recommendation is that Council considers establishing 
the following development objectives: (1) senior center and (2) public services 
(senior services). The administration proposes allocating $22,527 for senior center and 
$3,975 for public services (senior services). 

Agenda Review 
Department Head Finance/Treasurer City Attorney City Manager 

7A



CITY OF FARMINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application requirements 
for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other Community Planning 
and Development (CPD) programs, and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing as 
follows: 
 

Mayor LaRussa opened the Public Hearing at (Time). 
 

Public Comments: (Record Public Comments Here). 
 

Mayor LaRussa closed the Public Hearing at (Time). 
 

on November 18, 2024 to receive public comments regarding the proposed use of PY2025 
Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of $26,502 and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington found that the following projects meet the federal 
objectives of the CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Farmington CDBG application is hereby 
authorized to be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s Annual Action 
Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and that the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts which result from this application to 
Oakland County. 
 

Project Name   Allocation Amount 
   Senior Center            $22,527 
   Senior Services           $3,975 
 
Motion by: 
Supported by: 
Nays:  
Signed: 
 
I, Meaghan Bachman, the duly elected Clerk of the City of Farmington, Oakland County, MI do hereby certify that the 
above is a true copy of the City of Farmington City Council meeting minutes from November 18, 2024 at which time a 
quorum was present. 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

Reference Number 
7B 

Submitted by:  Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk 
 
Description   Consideration to Adopt Resolution Approving 2025 City Council Meeting Dates 
 
Requested Action   Move to adopt resolution to establish 2025 City Council meeting dates 
 
Background    
 
The Open Meetings Act requires that the regularly scheduled meetings of a public body be 
posted within ten days after the first meeting of that public body in each calendar or fiscal year.  
The Farmington City Charter, Section 6.1, states that the Council will provide, by resolution, the 
time and place of its regular meetings.   
 
Attached is a proposed City Council meeting schedule for 2025.  This would continue the 
tradition of meeting on the first and third Monday of each month in addition to a Special Session 
at 6 p.m. on the third Monday of every month.  
 

1. The council meetings slated for the first Mondays of July and August will be eliminated 
because business is historically slow during these dates, and we encounter vacation 
conflicts. 

2. The Monday night meeting prior to the November 4 election is eliminated to allot time 
for election preparation. 

 
Assuming a first and third Monday schedule, there are three meetings changed to Tuesday as a 
result of holidays: January 21 (Martin Luther King’s Birthday), February 18 (President’s Day) 
and September 2 (Labor Day).   
 
We have included one special meeting to review the City Manager’s recommended budget.  
This is scheduled for Monday, April 28, 2025, at 6:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
Materials:  
Resolution 

 



CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-23-027 
 

  
 WHEREAS, The Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et. seq. requires “for 
regular meetings of a public body, there shall be posted within 10 days after the 
first meeting of the public body in each calendar or fiscal year, a public notice 
stating the dates, times, and places of its regular meetings.” 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 6.1 of the City Charter states that Council provides by 
resolution for the time and place of its regular meetings. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the following are 
dates and times of regular and special City Council meetings for the year of 2025 
in Council Chambers of Farmington City Hall, 23600 Liberty Street, Farmington, 
Michigan. 
 
MEETING DATES 
 
Monday, January 6, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Tuesday, January 21, 2025  6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, February 3, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025  6:00 p.m.  Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, March 3, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, March 17, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, April 7, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, April 21, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, April 28, 2025   6:00 p.m. Budget Review Meeting 
 
Monday, May 5, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, May 19, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
 
Monday, June 2, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, June 16, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 



 
 
Monday, July 21, 2025    6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, August 18, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Tuesday, September 2, 2025  7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, September 15, 2025  6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, October 6, 2025   7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, October 20, 2025   6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, November 17, 2025  6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 
      7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, December 1, 2025  6:00 p.m. Reorganizational Meeting 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
Monday, December 15, 2025  6:00 p.m. Special Study Session 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
      
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
I, Meaghan K. Bachman, duly authorized City Clerk for the City of Farmington do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a motion adopted 
by the Farmington City Council at a regular meeting held on Monday, November 
18, 2024 in the City of Farmington, Oakland County, Michigan. 
 
      

____________________________________ 
     Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk 
 
 

• Election Dates:  
o Tuesday, November 4, 2025 
o Other dates TBD  



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7C 

Submitted by:   David Murphy, City Manager 
Agenda Topic:  Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 
 
Proposed Motion:   
 
Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #5, amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget.  

Background:    
 
At the October 21, 2024 council meeting, Council approved Change Order #1 to Pipeline 
Management for emergency sewer repairs.  Budget Amendment #5 provides funding for these 
projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  Budget Amendment Resolution #5 2024-25 
 

 





 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  
November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7D 

Submitted by:   
Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:    
Change Order No. 10 & Construction Estimate No. 8 for the Sidewalk Improvement Program 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to Approve payment to Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Company, Change Order No. 10 & 
Construction Estimate No. 8 in the amount of $314,129.36 for the Farmington Sidewalk 
Improvement Program. 

Background:   
In conjunction with the city’s consulting engineer’s Orchard Hiltz & McCliment Advisors (OHM), 
bids were solicited for the Farmington 2020/21 Sidewalk Program.  The selection of selection of 
the areas to be replaced was based upon the condition of the sidewalks and other upcoming 
construction projects.  The project was awarded to Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Company 
Incorporated of Roseville Michigan at the March 2020 Council Meeting.  
 
Change Order No. 10: Included a reduction of unit quantities of local street sidewalk 
replacements.  Increase of unit quantities for major street sidewalk replacements, increase of 
unit quantities for safe routes to school.  Increase of quantities for Women’s Park, and revised 
unit quantities for the sidewalk replacement on the south side of the north lot behind the Grand 
River businesses.   
 
Construction Estimate No.8: Earnings this period of $314,129.36 with additional $16,500 of 
retainage held for sidewalk replacement north of Shiawassee and east of Power Road.  This is 
the third year of improvements in this area and only one street is left to be completed  next fiscal 
year.  Sidewalks in this area were prioritized on the severity of displacement and the allocated 
funding.  Sidewalk replacements were conducted on entire lengths of streets, knowing some 
streets would be postponed until next fiscal year.   
 
Orchard Hiltz & Climate recommend payment to Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Company 
Incorporated in the amount of $314,129.36 for work completed to date and increase of  
retainage to $16,500.00 until restoration is completed. Total earnings this period is $330,129.36.         
 
Luigi’s Ferdinandi & sons has been a great contractor to work with, and has worked well with the 
residents, OHM conducting this project.  City Administration would like City Council to consider 
extending the contract to next Fiscal Year.   
 
Materials:  
OHM Change Order No. 10 and Payment Application No. 8 
 

 



Vendor # :

DATE: AMOUNT:

PAY TO THE ORDER OF: Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Company

MAILING ADDRESS 16481 Common Road
Roseville Michigan 48066

PURPOSE OF CHECK: 2020 Sidewalk Program No.8 

CHECK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

ISSUE CHECK AND RETURN TO 

X ISSUE CHECK ON 11/22/2024

NEXT WARRANT

MANUAL CHECK AUTHORIZATION DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZATION

CHARGE TO ACCOUNT NUMBER:

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT 401 AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

ACCOUNT AMOUNT RETAINAGE

CITY OF FARMINGTON
CHECK REQUEST

11/18/2024 $314,129.36

ON/OR BEFORE

11/21/2024 AND MAIL BY

203-450.00-818.000

202-450.00-818.000

202-000.00-001.005

$0.00

File:  2020 Sidewalk No.8 CO #10,  Tab:  Home Depot



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  
November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7E 

Submitted by:   
Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:   
 DPW Concrete Replacement Payment Application 
 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve the DPW Concrete replacement Pay Application No 15 in the amount of 
$12,701.16 to Hartwell Cement Company.   
 
Background:   
OHM reviewed bid submittals in February 2024 for the replacement of the concrete at 9 Mile 
DPW Facility.  Five contractors submitted quotes for replacement of 660 square yards of 
concrete plus the 51 square yard raised fuel island.  OHM Engineer’s Opinion of construction 
Cost for the 711 square yards of concrete replacement is approximately $90,000.     
 
The redistributed funding from Capital Improvement Fund, and Water & Sewer Fund that was 
intended for DPW roof replacement has been reallocated for the DPW Concrete Replacement, 
increasing funding to $175,000.   
 
To date Hartwell Cement Company has replaced 1311 square yards of the DPW parking lot, 
nearly double the original amount, final punch list items have been addressed, which included 
additional joint sealing of the fuel island and joints abutting the building.   
 
OHM recommends approving Payment application No. 15 using the 2018 Farmington Roads 
Maintenance & Rehab Contract with Hartwell Cement Company located in Oak Park, Mich. in 
the amount of $12,701.16, and earned interest.  Retainage is decreased to $500.  This payment 
is a release of previously held retainage.  The contract has not been closed out because we 
need the ability for Hartwell Concrete or the sidewalk contractor to submit a proposal for the 
concrete replacement near the sanitary sewer replacement on Farmington Road.    
 
 
Materials:  
OHM Recommendation of Payment no 15 



















 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  
November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7F 

Submitted by:   
Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:   Consideration to Renew Farmington Road Maintenance Agreement with the 
Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Proposed Motion:   Move to renew Farmington Road Maintenance Agreement with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County and allow City Administration to execute the contract 
documents reimbursing the City of Farmington up to $26,134.52 for the maintenance. 

Background:   
City Administration is recommending that the City Council approve the renewal of the 
Farmington Road Maintenance Agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County.  
Under the agreement, which covers a one-year period beginning October 1, 2024, the City of 
Farmington Department of Public Works provides routine maintenance on Farmington Road 
between Eight Mile and Grand River.   
 
This maintenance includes Road Surface Patching, Joint and Crack Filling, Sweeping, Grass & 
Weed Cutting (twice yearly), Tree Trimming and Emergency Removals Roadside Clean-up, 
Snow and Ice Removal and other general maintenance. 
 
Historically the City of Farmington has not conducted Crack & Joint Filling, or Structure Repairs 
on Farmington Road within the RCOC jurisdiction.  Public Works has been able to request 
RCOC to fulfill those Routine Maintenance Duties.  City Administration is committed to provide 
services which exceed the RCOC Maintenance Schedule.  Providing the increased level of 
services could result exceeding the RCOC allowances.        
 
This 2024-25 agreement has an increase of 3.0 percent which increases the amount from 
$25,373.32 to $26,134.52. 
 
  
Materials:  
2024-2025 Maintenance Agreement Package 
 

 



















 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

Item 
Number 

7G 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  Draw Request No. 2 
 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve Draw Request No. 2 the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior Repairs Phase 
1 to R. Graham Construction LLC in the amount of $ 15,800. 
Background:  
The ad hoc committee met to consider the initial scope of action to preserve the condition of the 
Warner Home using the Grant Funding the City of Farmington received from the State of 
Michigan.   
 
The Grant Funding Exterior Repairs will include replacing the shingle roofs on the Gardeners 
Shed, Outdoor Kitchen, Outdoor Restroom, the cedar shakes on the Gazebo,  replacing the low-
pitch second floor roof, tuckpoint the three false chimneys, and one former operational chimney.  
 
To complete the chimney tuckpointing a basket lift was required, the chimney tuckpointing 
required the chimneys to be torn down to the coin work then reconstructed and a new cap 
installed in replicating to the current chimney design and appearance.              
 
To date the gazebo cedar shakes have been removed, new sheathing placed, water/ice shield, 
and new shingles, outdoor kitchen, gardeners shed, and outdoor accessible restroom roof 
replacements have been completed.  The chimney tuck pointing/repairs has been completed.  
The low pitched second floor roofs have been replaced.  Roofing materials are onsite to be used 
for the rear porch roof replacement.  
 
Due to the condition of the facia board on the gardeners shed, and segments of the second floor 
low pitched roof.  R. Graham Construction was instructed to replace the facia boards and gutter.  
The increased the scope of the project resulted in an additional $1,600, plus the $685 building 
permit expense.  Contingency funds will cover the increased scope of work.         
 
The Ad hoc Committee Members will be meeting with  R. Graham Construction, and the 
Building Official next week to determine which direction to take for the rear porch roof and roof 
support.  A rear porch railing will be installed by R. Graham Construction but is not included 
within the cost of this project. 
 
Public Works Superintendent recommends approving the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior 
Repairs Draw Request No. 2 to R. Graham Construction LLC of Farmington in the amount of 
$15,800.  
 
Materials:  
R. Graham Construction, LLC Draw Request No. 2, dated 11/13/2024 
 



DRAW REQUEST 

R.GRAHAM CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
www.RGRAHAMCONSTRUCTION.COM   

30966 Grand River Ave., Farmington, MI  48336 

Phone (248) 987-1155 Fax (248) 987-1161 

  

          Date: November 13, 2024 

 

Name: CITY OF FARMINGTON 

Address: 23600 LIBERTY ST  

City:  FARMINGTON, MI    Phone: 248-474-5500 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

    

JOB SITE: PO#18802  

GOVERNOR WARNER MANSION  

33805 GRAND RIVER AVE,   

FARMINGTON, MI  

  

  

DRAW PAYMENT REQUEST: PROJECT TOTAL: $39,500.00  

- 90% COMPLETION $15,800.00 

  

ADDITIONAL CHARGES TO BASE CONTRACT:  

- NEW FASCIA WOOD AND GUTTERS ON REAR OF HOUSE BOTH 

SIDES: $1,600.00 
 

- BUILDING PERMIT PB24-00271: $  685.00  

        

        

              

*** MATERIAL TO COMPLETE ROOFING ON REAR PORCH IS STORED IN 

GARAGE 
       

       

    

    

                                                                                    AMOUNT DUE $15,800.00 

 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: November 18, 2024 

 
 

Informational 

Submitted by:  Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
Agenda Topic:  Minutes from City’s Boards and Commissions  
 
 
CIA: Not yet posted 
DDA: October 2024 
Historical: June 2024  
Parking:  No October Meeting 
Pathways: October 2024 
Planning: October 2024 
ZBA: November meeting canceled 
Library: October 2024 
Commission on Aging: September 2024 
Farmington/Farmington Hills Arts Commission: September 2024 
Commission on Children, Youth and Families: October 2024 
Emergency Preparedness Committee: August 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



    
   8:00AM Wednesday, October 2, 2024 
   City Hall Conference Room 
   23600 Liberty Street 

Farmington, MI 48335 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

MINUTES 
The meeting was called to order by Todd Craft at 8:04am 

 
1. Roll Call  

Present: Tom Pascaris, Linda Deskins, Johnna Balk, Todd Craft, Donovan 
Singleton 
Others Present: Kate Knight, Jess Westendorf 
Absent: Claire Perko, James McLaughlan, Sean Murphy, Shawn Kavanagh 

 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 a. Minutes: September 4, 2024 DDA Regular Meeting 

b. Minutes: June 26, 2024 DDA Public Art Committee  
   

Motion by Balk, seconded by Deskins, to approve the items on the consent agenda. 
Motion passes unanimously. 
 
3. Approval of Regular Agenda  
Motion by Pascaris, second by Singleton, to approve the items on the regular agenda. 
Motion passes unanimously. 
 
4. Public Comment 
Opened by Craft at 8:05am.  
Welcome to Walker Spitsbergen, 24005 Gill Rd. Visiting for school to observe a meeting and 
hoping to bring some of his interests to his hometown. 
  
5. Executive Director Report 
Fantastic Harvest Moon and Grand Raven Festival experienced growth. September 27 was a 
successful GRF opening with hundreds strutting through downtown, including closure of 
Farmington Road with Gabriel Brass Band.  Evening culminated with lighting 
installation/exhibition by Kresge Artist Gabriel Hall commissioned by Bicentennial Committee 
Earlier in the week we hosted the unveiling of the Bicentennial timeline mural and alley lighting 
at Fresh Thyme Alley while SOCMA (South Oakland County Mayors Association) was in town. 
Project was funded with a $10K Oakland County Board of Commissioners grant to add form and 
function to the alley. Dozens of volunteers convened to prep in flash mob fashion at the same 
time on September 25.    This is a heavy lift for our volunteer base, turning seasonal 
programming to be ready for October after Harvest Moon.  Special acknowledgement goes to 
Board member Sean Murphy, who worked late into the evening in setting up the season.   
Major news hits as the national announcement came out this week that Downtown Farmington 
is a Great American Main Street (GAMSA) semi-finalist, one of eight in the country- the only 
recognized program and community in the Great Lakes region. 
Masons Corner construction is progressing well. WDIV Channel 4’s Kim DeGuilio came out to 
interview and cover the opening of construction the week of Harvest Moon, it was an excellent 
opportunity to tie promotion back into our Harvest Moon Celebration, in which event proceeds 
support public art and public space. 
 



Visit Detroit is coming October 11th with more than 17M visitors to its platforms, hosted through 
our alliance with Main Street Oakland County.  Visit Detroit fills a crucial role in promoting CVB 
market presence for regional visitors to SE Michigan. Perfect timing with MALT mural in the 
works beginning next week. 
 
Nov 7-8 Michigan Downtown Association Annual Conference this year in Ann Arbor. We have 
the honor of representing Farmington on a panel with Fleis & VandenBrink and Team CORE, 
discussion community-initiated increment development and process from site selection to 
construction. 
 
6. Masons Corner Additional Services Request Grissim Metz Andriese 

Motion by Singleton, seconded by Pascaris, to allow the DDA Board authorize Executive 
Director to execute the Additional Services Request from Grissim Metz Andriese for 
$3,740 for value engineering and revision of construction plans for Masonic Plaza. 
Motion passes unanimously via roll call. 
Ayes: 5, Pascaris, Singelton, Craft, Balk, Deskins 
Nayes: 0 
Absent: 4 

 
7. Harvest Moon Update 
Another record-breaking weekend. Initial reporting is showing revenues up around 6.5%. Three 
beautiful days and smooth set up with over 100 volunteers making it possible. 
 
8. Committee Updates: 
  

a. Promotions Committee 
a. Harvest Moon, Grand Raven, LNO and an excellent engaged merchant group 

working on tactical / private sector  
b. Organization Committee 

a. Nothing to add other than exciting and busy Harvest Moon 
c. Business Development Committee 

a. Spirit of collaboration among downtown businesses – including tailgate team 
up with Loft and Heights. Hollywood haunt in the evening of October 26th. 
Master plan   

d. Design Committee 
a. Masons Corner underway 

e. Public Art Committee 
a. Ravens are in flight with raven art, including Edgar, Wings, and Raven Flights 

  
9.  Other Business 
Balk: Mansion cleanup update – estate offload is planned this month. Two heritage pieces from 
carriage house are in Dolcetto – an old scale and pie safe being used as a display. Great re-use 
incorporating community and small business. 
Craft: Three more meetings and Craft, Deskins, and Perko terms are expiring, any potential 
candidates send them to Kate or Todd. 
 
10. Board Comment 
Craft: Thank you for your time and energy. 
 
11. Adjournment 
Motion by Singleton, seconded by Balk to adjourn. Motion passes unanimously. 



 
 

FARMINGTON PATHWAYS COMMITTEE 
 
 

 7:00 p.m.                   MINUTES                 OCTOBER 9, 2024 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  7:03 pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Tim Prince, Joe VanDerZanden, Heather Davies, Jamie Palmisano, 
Chris Weber, Sue Lover, Bill Gesaman, Maria Taylor 
 
Absent: None 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion to approve by Maria and supported by Heather, approved unanimously. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. MEETING MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 11, 2024 
Motion to approve by Sue and supported by Heather, approved unanimously. 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 
a. CROSSWALKS ON GRAND RIVER 

i. The committee reviewed 13 more locations identified for possible 
crosswalks, discussing their usefulness, feasibility and challenges to 
adding them, including concerns about traffic speed and safety for 
crossings. 
-Discussed options for surveying the community for input and interest in 
adding crosswalks, including how to word survey questions and methods 
of reaching the community. 
-Heather reviewed steps to add crosswalks, including pedestrian count, 
traffic study and community input.   
-The committee decided to see if the master plan group wants to do the 
survey first, if not then the Pathways Committee will conduct the survey 
for community input. 
-Planned to compile one list of all of the proposed crosswalk locations to 
review and prioritize at the November meeting.  Also planned to look for 
examples of surveys used by other communities for similar projects. 

 
b. 9 MILE PATHWAY UPDATE 

i. Update on Meeting Held 10/8/24 
Chris gave an update from the most recent 9 Mile Pathway meeting, 
sharing the name options and visual branding/logos that were presented.  
The Pathways Committee provided opinions and feedback and reviewed 
the feedback given on these sample options at the 9 Mile Pathway 
meeting. 
Pathway Committee feedback to be passed on to the 9 Mile Pathway 
Committee. 

ii. Memorandum of Understanding 
City council approved the signing of it, being passed around to all of the 
communities to approve and sign and commit to building and maintaining. 

c. FARMINGTON ROAD PEDESTRIAN SIGNAGE 



Recommendations and concerns about the obscured signs were sent to the city 
traffic engineers (an outside firm).  The response was that the trees will grow 
above the sign within two to three years and resolve the problem.  They also 
suggested that the trees could be cut down.  Waiting for a second opinion. 

d. SIDEWALK PROGRAM AND PROSPECT STREET UPDATE 
Locations identified by Tim were looked at and the response was those areas are 
not part of this year’s sidewalk program. 
Maria shared that she received a community complaint about broken sidewalk 
flags located in front of 22833 Violet Street. Tim volunteered to go take pictures. 

e. SIDEWALK ISSUE ON MACOMB UPDATE 
Joe checked on the reported resolution and found the situation has been 
improved.  Where the sidewalk was covered in dirt in two spots that seemed to 
have traveled from the yard above, the dirt had been removed and sod installed 
to correct the drainage problem from the yard. 
-There was a report of ripped American flags in front of Los Tres Amigos and 
Starbucks.  This will be forwarded to Melissa, who handles the city’s American 
flag program. 
-There was an update on the triangle of land at the corner of Grand River and 
Shiawassee streets where weeds and plants are overgrown into the sidewalk– 
The new owner of the home is aware of the issue and is making improvements to 
the property.  It seems the issue will likely be resolved by the homeowner next 
year. 

f. MICHIGAN SHARED STREETS AND SPACES GRANT UPDATE 
A grant application was submitted for the city.  The date has been pushed back 
and a response should come by the end of October. 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. ANY NEW TARGET AREAS? 

Broken sidewalk flags and flags with holes identified on the south side of Grand 
River, to address in future sidewalk program.  Trees overgrown over the sidewalk 
identified by Chatham Hills. 
 
The hole in the stamped concrete in the crosswalk on Grand River at Farmington 
Road was brought up again, which is an MDOT issue. 
 
Revisited suggestions that the driveway alongside the flower shop on Grand 
River be made enter only following two reports of driver/pedestrian issues in that 
spot due to no visibility when drivers pull out there. 

b. ANY NEW CITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS? 
i. Syndicate Expansion – Expanding to incorporate the upcoming Lone 

Light Distillery tasting room.  Reviewed the updated Syndicate map. 
ii. Pop-up Pickleball moving into the old Tuesday Morning location with a 6-

month lease. 
iii. A business plan has been submitted for a new restaurant, Grand Thai 

Princess, to move into the Bankok Kitchen location in the World Wide 
Shopping Center.  There are existing restaurant locations in Okemos and 
Birmingham. 

 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 

8. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENT 
-Maria discussed the success of the opening of the timeline mural and the possibility to 
add it to the Syndicate social district for events and pop-up bar type things. 
- A mural is being painted on the ends of the pavilion in Riley Park 



-Work has begun on the M5 pedestrian overpass, trees are being cut down, and 
preparations for putting in sidewalks on the north side. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT  8:50 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Next meeting:  NOVEMBER 13, 2024 



   
                       FARMINGTON PLANNING COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 
                                                  23600 Liberty Street 
                                                 Farmington, Michigan 
                                                   October 14, 2024 
 
Chairperson Perrot called the meeting to order in Council Chambers, 23600 Liberty 
Street, Farmington, Michigan, at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, June 14, 2024. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   
Present:    Crutcher, Gray, Kmetzo, Mantey, Perrot, Westendorf  
Absent:      Majoros 
 
A quorum of the Commission was present. 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:   Chris Weber, Assistant City Manager; Jeffrey Bowdell, 
Building Director, Beth Saarela, City Attorney, Brian Golden, Director of Media, Bonnie 
Murphy, Recording Secretary. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Crutcher, seconded by  Westendorf,  to approve the agenda. 
Motion carried, all ayes. 
 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA  
 

A.  July 8, 2024 Minutes 
 
MOTION by Westendorf, seconded by Kmetzo, to approve the items on Consent Agenda. 
Motion carried, all ayes. 
 
PROPOSED FAÇADE MODIFICATION FOR “LONE LIGHT SPIRITS TASTING 
ROOM”, 23622 FARMINGTON ROAD 
 
Chairperson Perrot introduced this item and turned it over to staff. 
 
Chris Weber, Assistant  City Manager, stated that as part of the tenant improvements, 
Lone Light Spirits Tasting Room proposes to install new windows in the same size and 
location as the currently existing windows.  The replacement windows differ from the 
existing windows because they will be capable of opening.  The windows open in the 
same manner as the windows at The Heights, which is across the street.   What the 
Planning Commission is being asked to evaluate is whether the plan meets the standards 
of Section 35-104.C.5 of the Zoning Ordinance which deals with windows.  The 
requirements are documented in your staff report.  The main requirements to be 
evaluated is number 5, which is the number, shape, size and spacing of the windows, 
shall be compatible with the established rhythm of adjoining or nearby buildings in the 
downtown.  If the PC determines the windows meet the requirements, they can pass a 

 
 
 



City of Farmington Planning Commission 
October 14, 2024 
Page 2 

  

motion to that effect, if not, the DDA Design Committee and Planning Commission can 
consider modifying the standards.  We have Joe Lordon in our audience today from Lone 
Light Spirits who will give a brief discussion about his project and answer any questions 
that the Planning Commission might have. 
 
Joe Lordon, Proprietor of Lone Light Spirits Tasting Room, came to the podium.  He 
thanked the Commission for accommodating his request to be on tonight’s agenda.  For 
those of you who don’t know me I’m Joe Lordon, I am the founder and head distiller at 
Lone Lights Spirits, we are a craft distillery, our production building is in Ferndale and we 
are looking to open up our tasting room at 23622 Farmington Road.  The tasting room 
concept is essentially a full service cocktail bar, mixed drinks, samplings, all that stuff but 
only using my spirits and then of course mixers sourced elsewhere but from an alcohol 
standpoint it will be only my spirits, there’s not going to be any food at the location, they’ll 
be able to bring food in, of course we are looking to become part of the Social District and 
be able to serve cocktails to go to be enjoyed elsewhere downtown.  The façade 
improvements that we’re looking to do and stated is basically the existing windows and 
upgrade them to something a little bit more esthetically pleasing, consistent with some of 
the other businesses in the area, namely The Heights, right across the street.  Currently 
they are big single pane kind of mirrored glass that are clearly outdated, they’re not very 
esthetically pleasing, they don’t match any of the other store fronts on the street.   They 
are, I forgot the term my architect said they are nonthermally broken frame or something 
along those lines, basically they are not energy efficient and in the wintertime it’s not going 
to be cheap to heat them, so replace them with insulated glass and the frames will all be 
the kind of black that is also across the street at Heights, and some of the other 
businesses in the area, again, consistency down the street and then with the opening of 
the windows, there’s obviously a lot of benefits to that.  People will enjoy being able to 
have the fresh air in there in the warmer months, it will kind of connect it esthetically but 
also from a functional standpoint to the Social District and the street and sidewalk outside, 
it's just much more welcoming and inviting and enticing for people to come in when they 
can hear the people talking and music and I just think it will be a really nice upgrade for 
the space.   
 
Perrot thanked Lordon for the summary and opened the floor with his question about the 
Lone Light Spirits signage, is it exterior or interior, the sign that’s in the window. 
 
Lordon replied it will be built into it, I believe there might some, the letters might be 
protruding just a bit but it will be built basically flush with the window system. 
 
Perrot said my other question is that obviously you’re going to benefit from the 
Streetscape that the City just invested in and that second block of business has gained 
sidewalk from the previous design, now these windows when they open, they open out, 
right?  Lordon replied inward.  Perrot said that was going to lead to my next question  



City of Farmington Planning Commission 
October 14, 2024 
Page 3 

  

 
which is if they were to protrude out, I’m guessing you’re going to want some kind of 
outside seating at some point in time. 
 
Lordon replied we had discussed that but yeah, I think you know maybe there’s room for 
two tops, we didn’t really look into that but we’re not looking to apply for any kind of 
outdoor seating, like a license, so at this point we’re not looking to do anything like that, 
but yes, the windows will be opening towards the inside. 
 
Perrot asked if the upstairs is part of the suite and Lordon replied no, we don’t share an 
entrance or anything like that, the entrance to that is just to the south.  He then opened 
the floor for questions from the Commissioners. 
 
Crutcher stated just as an observation, this is going on across the street at the Brewery 
because this may be part of future projects as well, but the noise generated through the 
neighborhood from neighbors, right now there are apartments above your unit, those are 
residential and Lordon replied yes.  Crutcher stated the Brewery’s windows are facing the 
commercial street, and these are facing towards the neighborhood behind, which 
obviously is a little ways away from there but is facing more towards the residential area, 
but I just want you to be aware that looking at it like this, that can increase the noise level 
on the street and we should probably take that into consideration when we’re going to 
approve these applications or not, not just the esthetics of it, whether it’s operable, 
whether it’s blocking the sidewalk, what is going to be of some concern or produce some 
kind of noise problem with the neighbors.  In this case I don’t think it does. 
 
Lordon replied I don’t think it would, I don’t have an official capacity at this point, but I 
can’t imagine it’s going to be more than what you know some of the gatherings at the park 
where there’s music and all kinds of stuff that’s even closer to the neighborhood. 
 
Crutcher stated my point is other than the neighbor right above you, that’s probably the 
one person that’s going to be impacted by the noise from this in this location but if you 
went somewhere else, there also may be someone living across the street or down the 
street or in a closer proximity.  Someone moving in above a bar, they should probably 
expect there will be some noise but if you’re living across the street especially if they were 
there before you moved in.  Lordon replied they’re currently renovating it right now, so no 
one is going to be taken by surprise.   Crutcher said other than that if you can put a tap in 
the unit upstairs, I’ll take that unit. 
 
Kmetzo inquired about the seating capacity and Lordon replied right now the number is 
about 41 seats including bar seating, there’s a little bit of room for standing room but until 
we get our final inspection we won’t know exactly what the capacity can be. 
 



City of Farmington Planning Commission 
October 14, 2024 
Page 4 

  

 
Crutcher stated I don’t think the sidewalk is going to be wide enough for you to get 
sidewalk seating and Lordon replied I don’t think it is. 
 
Perrot opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION by Crutcher, supported by Kmetzo, to move to approve façade modification for 
Lone Light Spirits Tasting Room, located at 23622 Farmington Road, as presented. 
Motion carried, all ayes. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None heard.    
 
Building Director Bowdell thanked Crutcher for his comments including the opening of the 
windows and because this was going to open to the street, my concern could do that by 
right and we could end up with a place very close to a residential neighborhood that if we 
let everybody else do it, then this gives you the authority to say no, your location, I don’t 
think that’s a good idea.  So that was my major concern with not doing it by right and Mr. 
Crutcher hit it on the head. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT  
 
Crutcher inquired if any new plans have been coming to town 
And Weber replied there’s several things being discussed but nothing to be revealed. 
 
Crutcher then asked about the progress of Maxfield and Bowdell replied regarding  the 
Maxfield Training Center, the building is very close to being completely removed, the 
foundations and all those things they’re steadily working on, there’s an underground tank 
that has to be removed yet and hopefully that will be done by the end of the week.  Site 
work will probably start, water, sewer, things like that.  We have not approved their 
building plan yet, they’re still making some adjustments to that plan and once that’s 
complete, we haven’t issued a construction permit yet.   
 
Perrot asked if there were any surprises and Bowdell replied no, not that he thinks besides 
little idiosyncrasies.  The oddest thing they’ve had to deal with is you cannot drive to a 
front door so they’re going to have addresses over the garage doors that you can’t get in 
so the UPS man, the pizza man, so we had agreed before they even started that they 
would put addresses on both sides of the building so that somebody can figure out where 
they’re going but they dealt with it right away and like I say we really don’t anticipate any 
issues. 
 



City of Farmington Planning Commission 
October 14, 2024 
Page 5 

  

   
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by  Kmetzo,  supported by Crutcher , to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried, all ayes.                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m.  
                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
       Respectfully submitted,  
 
      
     ______________________________ 
                                                        Secretary   



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting - 6:00 p.m. - October 10, 2024 

 

 

Board Members Present: McClellan, Brown, White, Doby, Snodgrass (arrives late), one 

vacant seat 

 

Board Members Absent:  Muthukuda, Murphy 

 

Staff Members Present:  Siegrist, Baker, Showich-Gallup, Peterson 

 

Staff Members Absent:  None 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 6:04 by President Ernie McClellan.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION by Doby to approve the Agenda for the October 10, 2024, Board meeting was 

supported by Brown, with following amendments: approval of September (not August) minutes 

under Minutes, approval of September (not August) operating bills under Treasurer’s Report, 

and add Facilities under Sub-Committee Updates: 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (4-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

AUDIT PRESENTATION 

Kari Shea, Plante Moran 

Audit of FCL financials recently completed by Alan C. Young & Associates returned an 

“unqualified opinion.” It was “as clean and perfect as it could go,” per K. Shea.  

 

(Trustee Sharon Snodgrass arrives.) 

 

FARMINGTON HILLS ROAD MILLAGE PRESENTATION 

Karen Mondora, Assistant City Manager 

Proposal is for renewal of 2.0 mills, first passed in 2014, that is dedicated to major roads.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOTION by White to approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held September 12, 

2024, was supported by Doby. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (5-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 



 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

MOTION by Brown to approve paying September 2024 operating bills totaling $320,438.44 was 

supported by White. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (5-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

MOTION by Brown to receive and file the September 2024 financial reports was supported by 

Doby. 

Vote: Aye:  All in favor (5-0) 

 Opposed:  None 

Motion passed. 

 

FRIENDS’ REPORT (S. Charlesbois) 

• The Friends Board welcomes newest member Mike Cassar. 

• Library Friends Week is October 20-26.  

• The Fall Book Sale will be held October 18-20. To volunteer, use Friends contact on website.  

• Author Viola Shipman will visit FCL on October 21. Attendees, either in-person OR online, 

must register.  

• The Friends of the Farmington Library are celebrating their 70th anniversary.  

 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT (K. Siegrist) 

• Grand Raven Walks are occurring every Thursday through October.  

• FCL signed up 458 new card holders during September (Library Card Sign Up Month). Also, 

the annual Card Design Contest received 85 submissions. 

• Both branches will be closed on November 11 for Staff Professional Learning Day.  

• Millage renewal proposal is on ballot for November 5. 

• The Millage Committee posted an advertisement in the Farmington Press in order to correct 

misinformation surrounding the millage renewal proposal.  

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

Finance (K. Brown) 

• The first Summer Tax disbursement check from Farmington Hills ($2,365,542.58) was 

received September 16. It has been deposited in MI Class account. 

 

Personnel  



 Farmington Community Library Board of Trustees 
 Board Meeting - 6:00 p.m. - October 10, 2024 

 

• No report 

 

Master Plan 

• No report 

 

Facilities (S. Snodgrass) 

MCD Architects presented latest version of the Master Plan to the Facilities Committee on 

October 10. Next meeting of the committee will be November 7. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

TRUSTEE COMMENT 

C. Doby - go visit the Redford Library and check out the new Children’s space. (MCD Architects 

designed this.) 

E. McClellan - Friends have made substantial donation to Millage Committee. Consider a future 

campaign to help Friends replenish their funds.   

S. Snodgrass - where should trustees find emails from FCL? Per C. Peterson, messages go to 

both personal and farmlib.org addresses.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Board meeting was adjourned by President McClellan at 7:07. The next meeting of the 

Library Board is scheduled for Thursday, November 14, at 6:00 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Jim White, Secretary 

Library Board of Trustees 

http://farmlib.org/


MEETING MINUTES 
FARMINGTON AREA COMMISSION ON AGING 

COSTICK CENTER, SHANNON HALL 
28600 ELEVEN MILE ROAD, FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48336 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2024-5:30 PM 
(248) 473-1821 www.fhgov.com 

 
 

Meeting called to order at 5:32pm. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 

Tiffany Tuttle, Farmington Hills 
Dr. Marian Schulte, Farmington Hills 
Dr. Katherine Marshall, Farmington Hills 
Mary Buchan, Farmington Hills 
Dan Fantore, Farmington Hills 
Dolli Lewis, Farmington Hills 
Julie McCowan, Farmington Hills 
Julie Villani, Farmington Hills 
Jane Frost, Farmington 
Marsha Koet, Senior Division Liaison 
Michael Bridges, Farmington Hills City Council Liaison 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
September 24, 2024 
Motion by Julie Villani 2nd Dr. Katherine Marshall 

 
APPROVAL OF JUNE 25, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 
Motion by Dr. Katherine Marshall 2nd Dr. Marian Schulte 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Nothing to report. 

 
COMMUNICATION, PROMOTIONS AND WEBSITE  
Dr. Marian Schulte will contact webmaster.  

 
EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
Committee members gave presentation to Retired Teachers Association. Good feedback from group. 

 
SENIOR CENTER ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
Michael Bridges informed the commissioners of a City Council Study Session at the Costick Center on 
October 14 at 6 pm. The topic is senior programs and the Costick Center. The City Master Plan Review 
and Land Study is focusing on Grand River Avenue, Twelve Mile Road from Drake to Haggerty Road, 
and Orchard Lake Road north of Twelve Mile Road. Farmington Hills City Council is reviewing police 
stops.  
 
SENIOR DIVISION LIAISON REPORT 
Total Wellness Fair is October 1, 10am-1pm 
Farmington Schools Breakfast is October 17, 9am 
Veteran’s Day Celebration is November 11, 11am 



 
OLD BUSINESS 
Nothing to report. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Nothing to report. 
 
AMBASSADOR REPORT 
Nothing to report. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Nothing to report. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
6:19pm 

 

Next meeting Tuesday, October 22nd, at Costick Center. 

Minutes submitted by Marsha Koet 

 
 
 



          APPROVED 
MEETING MINUTES 

FARMINGTON AREA ARTS COMMISSION 
September 12, 2024 -6:30 PM 

THE HAWK FARMINGTON HILLS COMMUNITY CENTER 
Lesson Room, First Floor 

29995 TWELVE MILE ROAD 
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48334 
(248) 699-6712  www.fhgov.com 

 
 

 
CALLED TO ORDER BY:    Chair Perko  AT:  6:45 PM 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Claire Perko, Cheryl Blau, Lindsay Janoch, Ted Hadfield, Nora Mason, Donald Fritz, Jeff 

Dutka, Sean Deason, Bree Schwartz 
     
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Celeste McDermott, Lesa Ferencz, Cindy Carleton, Craig Nowak 
  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Rachel Timlin, Cultural Arts Supervisor/Staff Liaison 
    Keith Janoch, Public     
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion by Commissioner Fritz  support by Commissioner Hadfield  to approve the agenda without amendments.  

MOTION CARRIED 9:0:0 
 
APPROVAL OF June 13, 2024 MINUTES: 
 
Motion by Commissioner Janoch support by Chair Perko  to approve the minutes without amendments. 

MOTION CARRIED 9:0:0 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No public comments. 
 
CULTURAL ARTS DIVISION REPORT 
 
Rachel Timlin reported that Cultural Arts summer camps had 1000+ attendees despite staffing challenges.  Summer 
concert season went well.  Makerspace 2nd Anniversary Celebration and Public Art program artist talk are Sept 13. New 
concert season kicks off on 9/17 with DSO.  Michigan Maker’s Market is October 19.  There are several job openings in 
Cultural Arts in Visual and Performing Arts. Art Awards are Sept 28. 
 
FARMINGTON ARTS REPORT 
 
Mural project in Riley Park is in progress with an October completion planned. Masonic Lodge corner plaza work has 
begun.  Housing demolition will begin soon to create Art Promenade. Historic projection/program planned for 9/27. New 
exhibition at KickstArt Farmington. 
 
ARTS COMMISSION BUDGET 
 
Portion of funds from past season were rolled over to create an available budget of $4,170 for the new commission year.  
Request was made for Arts Commission contribute to the Art Awards budget. 



    
   

:Page 2 

Motion by Chair Perko to allocate up to $500 for refreshments for the upcoming Art Awards   support by 
Commissioner Mason. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 9:0:0 
 
 
COMMISSION FOCUSED 2024-2025 PROJECTS REVIEW 
 
Mary Brooks Exhibit 
 
Project discussion will be tabled until October meeting. 
 
Little Art Library 
 
Commissioner Schwartz shared that progress has been made over the summer and they are working on a new location. 
 
25th Anniversary Cultural Arts Musical Composition 
 

Commissioner Fritz shared that funding is being sought. 

 

COMMISIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
Commissioner Fritz shared that he enjoyed this summer’s Stars in the Park programming and is disappointed to learn 
about a reduction in summer concert offerings next season. 
 
Commissioner Hadfield shared that the next show at KickstArt opens on October 4 with Carlos Diaz. 
 
Commissioner Janoch shared that North Farmington student ID photos were taken today and the students have some fun 
and creative ideas that are being shared online. 
 
Commissioner Perko highly recommends the Adult/Older Child art class at The Hawk that she and her daughter just 
completed. 
 
 
LIAISON COMMENTS 

 
No liaisons present. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE:  October 10, 2024 
 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Adjourned by:   Chair Perko  Time: 7:38 PM 
 
Minutes drafted by:  Lindsay Janoch 



MEETING MINUTES

FARMINGTON/FARMINGTON HILLS
COMMISSION ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, & FAMILIES

October 3, 2024
Community Room, Farmington Hills City Hall,

31555 W. Eleven Mile Rd., Farmington Hills, MI. 48336

1) Call to Order
A. Meeting called to order at 6:03
B. Quorum announced

a. Members present: T. Nordhaus, R. Wallace, A. Gabb, J. Scrimger, T. Luty, B
Spitsbergen, A. Valden,

b. Liaisons present: P. Spelman, M. Gale, K. Sexton, A. Radze
c. Others present:

2) Approval of Agenda
A. The following edit was proposed: Presentation by Public Works Director Jacob Rushlow
B. Moved by T. Luty
C. Seconded by R. Wallace
D. Motion passes unanimously

3) Approval of June 6, 2024 Minutes
A. The following edits were proposed:

a. T. Nordhaus requested for a name change
B. Moved by T. Nordhaus
C. Seconded by A. Gabb
D. Motion passes unanimously

4) Presentation by Public Works
A. Jacob Rushlow came in to discuss the impact of the upcoming millage renewal vote on

road construction and maintenance in the area. The renewal assists with fixing potholes
and reconstruction of aging roads. The 2.0 mill renewal will increase taxes by $240 per
year for the next ten (10) years.

5) Youth Division Update
A. Parks and Recreation Director Matthew Gale shared that there are currently more than

300 students signed up for programming at The Hawk. A recent donation from the Youth
Center from the Exemplar Club will provide additional supplies and activities.
Unfortunately, the Esports program at The Hawk will close soon due to a lack of interest.

5) Issues Committee Update
A. Commission member Luty shared that The Rock Painting Extravaganza held at the

Library in the weeks previous would have benefitted from more presence and support
from volunteers from the Commission. She shared that a next step could be the



improvement of communication between the Commission and the library during these
events. Liaison Sexton shared that the Library’s priority was the Library itself during the
event. There was, however, a tremendous turnout. Spitsbergen moved that the
Commission allocate $40 towards the purchase of gift cards for the volunteers who did
support the venture; Wallace seconded.

B. Wallace shared copies of a survey for Farmington/Farmington Hills residents in support of
making the initiative development of the Commission more strategic. The survey will
include questions about concerns of the city for its youth and ideas for upcoming events.
Marketing for the survey will be through signage at the Library and other local meeting
spots for families like The Hawk and sent out via socials from the city and through
Peachjar. Wallace asked the commission to consider the survey and make additional
suggestions as desired before it is published. There was a motion to allocate $500 for
the survey ($400 for the participation gift cards and $100 for the printing) by Wallace and
was seconded by Spitsbergen. It was met with unanimous approval.

C. The Commission worked on its yearly initiative diagram. Scrimger suggested that
additional organizations be brought in to engineer the rock garden project. Gabb will lead
the charge for the volunteer recognition project, while Nordhaus will take the lead on the
Career Night event. Spitsbergen will again lead the Mental Health initiative for Spring
with additional insight from the survey results.

6) New Business and Announcements
A. Scrimger reminded the group about the upcoming election and its importance.
B. FPD Liason Radze shared the Farmington Hills citywide open house event on October 5

from 12pm-3pm that allowed for the tour of public service vehicles and the meeting of
the two new canine officers. Luty engaged the group in discussion about the recent
active shooter incident in her area and the worry it caused for citizens.

C. FHPD Liason Spelman spoke to a Police and Pancakes event that will be held on
October 5 at the Farmer’s Market in partnership with the Freedom Gateway Center.

D. FCL Liason Sexton reiterated the importance of the library millage renewal and the
impact on the budget of the Library. There are also parent workshops on 10/10 involving
coping and other mental welnness matters from 7pm-8pm. Signup is available at the
library’s website.

E. Parks and Recreation liaison spoke to events on 10/19 with archery (Surviving The
Apocalypse game), The Hawk 5K on 10/6 at 9am, and the Boo Bash event on 10/20 at
11am at Heritage Park.

F. Valden requested information regarding the fundraising capability of the Commission for
issues outside the immediate realm of the Commission’s responsibility (i.e. a tragedy
happening in a another locale). Scrimger shared that she would look into it.

7) Public Comments
A. There was no public comment.

8) Adjournment
A. Moved by T. Luty
B. Seconded by A. Valden
C. Motion passes unanimously
D. Meeting adjourned at 7:21



 

1 
 

APPROVED MEETING MINUTES 
FARMINGTON / FARMINGTON HILLS EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMISSION 

AUGUST 5, 2024 
FARMINGTON HILLS CITY HALL – COMMUNITY ROOM 

31555 W. 11 MILE RD. 
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48336 

 
CALLED TO ORDER BY: CHAIR WECKER AT 5:00PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: SWEENEY, IGWE, SIEGRIST, SCHERTEL, WILLIAMS, 
WECKER, AVIE, SLOAN 
 
MEMEBRS ABSENT: FORSHEE, ECHOLS, CIARAMITARO, THOMAS, HOPFE 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Friess (FPS), Piggot (FHPD), Pankow (FHFD), Aldred (FH City 

Council)  
OTHERS ABSENT: Yuskowatz (YMCA) 
 
CITIZENS PRESENT: Jonathon James 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

Motion by Avie, support by Schertel, to approve the agenda as submitted.  
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 Motion by Avie, support by Siegrist, to approve July 1, 2024 meeting minutes as 

submitted. Motion carried unanimously.     
 
BUDGET ITEMS: 

• Purchase order for 4 CPR mannequins approved. Requisition approved for 2023 budget year 
ending June 2024.  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

Discussion: EPC proposed Web page reviewed. Landing Page sample, (in print), provided to 
members by Schertel. Information to be reviewed and updated as necessary. Materials to be 
submitted to liaisons for review and additional suggestions. Commissioners to review when 
they are ready, which will be prior to submission to the Farmington Hills City Public 
Information Office for posting as an EPC Landing Page. Motion by Wecker to move forward 
with the webpage development, supported by Schertel. Motion carried unanimously.    

NEW BUSINESS: 
• Discussion on holding an EPC Emergency Preparedness expo/event open to the public. Avie 

indicated high interest by various venders in participating and assisting with an event of this 



 

2 
 

type. The EPC and Vendors participating in the event would assemble on site information 
about their services, resources, materials and equipment available to the public to assist them 
pre and post emergencies - tornado and storm damage, flooding, prolonged power outages 
etc.. Schertel suggested EPC members consider attending the 9th Annual Livingston County 
Family Emergency Readiness Expo August 24th to observe the event and develop ideas for a 
similar event. Avie to provide a proposal for an EPC hosted event at the October 7th meeting.  

• Wecker proposed the EPC take the lead in working with area community organizations, 
FHFD, FHPD, FPS, the city of Farmington and Farmington Hills to facilitate Farmington and 
Farmington Hills being designated/recognized as a “Heart Safe Communities.” The goal 
being to get the cities better prepared to respond to cardiac emergencies. Motion by Wecker, 
seconded by Schertel. Motion approved by unanimous vote. 

• Sweeney to put together a proposal to present at the October 7th meeting on what to assemble 
and include in an Emergency Prep Kit to be displayed as a demo at public events.      

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: (none) 
 
LIAISON REPORTS: 
• FPD (Friess) – The world’s largest duck, (6 stories tall), is coming to Shiawassee Park for 

the annual duck race and family fun day. The event is August 6 & 7 and includes a bounce 
houses, petting zoo, games, food vendors face painting and more both days. Duck Races start 
at 6:30 pm on the 7th. Fifty-thousand people are expected to attend over the two-day event. 
Sgt. Miracle is the contact at FPS. 

• YMCA (Yuskowatz requested it be noted) – The YMCA will be holding a golf outing, 
their biggest fundraiser of the year, on August 13th at Northville Hills. They are accepting 
donations of items to auction… Gift Certificates for food or services and money. Interested 
parties should contact the YMCA. 

• FHPD (Piggott) – Commented on the sale of CPR/STB materials by the EPC at the 
Founders Festival or other public events. Suggested the EPC direct people to FHFD directly 
to purchase items. Wecker to follow up with FHFD. 

• Aldred (FH City Council) – City Counsel liked the EPC information packets assembled and 
distributed at the Founders Festival. 

• Pankow (FHFD) Nothing to report  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None   

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 

• Sweeney – Congratulated FHFD Fire Marshall Jason Baloga for being recognized by the US 
Consumer Product Safety Division for a fire investigation that led to the recall of faulty 
power banks, “The Base’s Magnetic Wireless Charging Power Bank.” This resulted in the 
recall of over 130,000 defective chargers potentially preventing future fires and injuries 
nationwide. 

• Avie – thanked members for their participation in the EPC booth at the Farmington Founders 
Festival. Also thanked members who volunteered to assist with the Founders Festival Parade.   



 

3 
 

• Williams – mentioned a lack of certainty about how to handle cash transactions for CPR & 
STB items, where the funds went and a lack of “hands on” CPR training. 

• Wecker- Noted all funds are turned over to FHFD and are used to replenish CPR & STB 
items sold. Also reminded the EPC commissioners that everyone is eligible to take the CPR / 
AED / Stop the Bleed class offered by FHFD.  The next class is August 22nd, 2024 at Station 
4 (28711 Drake Rd.) at 5:30 pm in the training room.   

• Siegrist – mentioned people visiting by the EPC booth at the Founders Festival showed a 
high degree of interest in learning CPR. Many requested a demonstration using the 
mannequin on display. Many more indicated they would like to take the classes offered by 
FHFD and were provided information on how to register as well as when and where the 
classes take place.  

• Sloan – reported having good interaction with 35 plus people while in the EPC booth at the 
Founders Festival. People were informed on how to assemble and what to include in an 
emergency preparation kit.     

NEXT MEETING DATE:  

It was confirmed that the next meeting date is on Monday, November 4, 2024 in the Community 
Room.  

 
ADJOURNMENT:  
Chair Wecker adjourned the meeting at 6:08 pm.   

Minutes taken by T. Siegrist, drafted by Secretary Echols 


	1 11.18.2024 REGULAR AGENDA
	4Aa 10.21.2024 Council Special Meeting Minutes
	4Ab 10.21.2024 Council Regular Minutes
	4B Monthly Payments Report October 2024
	4C October 2024 Public Safety Report
	4Da Board and Commission Resignations
	4Db Ann Echols resignation
	4Dc Colleen Coogan resignation email
	4Ea Staff Report Amend ACH Policy
	4Eb ACH Policy
	4Ec Resolution Authorizing Electronic Transactions
	4Fa September 2024 Cover Sheet Investment rept
	4Fb September 2024 Investment Report
	4Ga Court Quarterly Financial Report 063024
	4Gb Court Quarterly Financial Report 093024
	4Ha City Quarterly Financial Report 6-30-24
	4I Historical Commission Appointment Kevin Russom
	4J a World Kindness Day
	4J World Kindness Day 2024 FINAL
	6A Small Business Grant Presentations for Lone Light Spirits and SKEP from Genysis and Main Street Oakland County
	6B Masons Revitalization Plan Presentation Main Street Oakland County
	6C Staff Report - Public Hearing CDBG PY 2025
	7Aa November 18 Staff Report
	9 CDBG Staff Report
	7Aa Staff Report - Adopt CDBG Resolution PY 2023


	7Ab CDBG Resoution
	7Ba SR 2025 City Council meeting dates
	7Bb 2025 City Council Meeting dates
	MEETING DATES

	7Ca Staff Report - Budget Amendment #5
	7Cb Budget Amendment #5 2024-25
	7Da 24.11.18 Sidewalk Improvement Program
	7Db 2020 Sidewalk No.8 CO #10
	Home Depot

	7Ea 24.11.18 DPW Parking_Island
	7Eb 2018 Farmington Rd Maint-Rehab_Pay App No 15.pdf
	7Fa 24.11.18 Road Commission Maintenance
	7Fb 2024-2025 Maintenance Agreement
	7Ga 24.11.18 Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior PA No.2
	7Gb GOV WARNER MANSION DRAW 2
	9a Board & Commission Minutes
	9c DDA October 2, 2024 Minutes
	9d Pathways October 9 2024 Minutes
	9e planning 10-14-24-pc-final
	ROLL CALL

	9f 101024-fcl-board-meeting-minutes-draft
	9g coa-09-24-2024-approved
	9h faac-09-12-2024-approved
	9i CORRECTED-10.03.24 CYF Meeting Minutes
	9j epc-08-05-2024-approved



